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AASHRIT CAPITAL LIMITED 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
Regd. Office: Select City Walk, A-3 District Centre 6th Floor, Saket, New Delhi-110017 

Tel. No. 011-40599999, Email Id: jalan_cement@yahoo.in, Website: www.aashritcapital.com 
CIN: L65923DL1972PLC317436 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Aashrit Capital Limited will be held on 
Thursday, 30th Day of September, 2021 at 02:00 P.M at Select City Walk, 6th Floor, A-3, District Centre, 
Saket, New Delhi-110017, to transact the following businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 
 
ITEM NO. 1 – ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended on 31st March 2021, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 
ITEM NO. 2 – APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR 
 
To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Babita Kumar (DIN: 09214531) who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offer herself for re-appointment. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 
 
ITEM NO. 3 – RE-APPOINTMENT OF MRS. HEENA KHURANA NAGPAL (03147698) AS AN 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and pursuant to the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mrs. Heena 
Khurana Nagpal (DIN: 03147698), who holds office of Independent Director up to 31st March, 2021 and 
who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as provided under Section 
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in respect of whom the Company has received a 
notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member, signifying his intention to propose Mrs. 
Heena Khurana Nagpal’s candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term of five 
consecutive years commencing from 1st April, 2021 upto 31st March, 2026.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its committee thereof) 
and/ or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
 
ITEM NO. 4 – APPOINTMENT OF MRS. BABITA KUMAR (09214531) AS A DIRECTOR 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Babita Kumar (DIN: 09214531) who was appointed as an Additional Director of 
the Company w.e.f. 29th June, 2021 by the Board of Directors and who holds office upto the date of this 
Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and 
pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of 
Directors, and being eligible, offer herself for appointment, and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member signifying his intention to 
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propose Mrs. Babita Kumar’s candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as a 
Non-executive, Non Independent Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its committee thereof) 
and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
 
ITEM NO. 5 – APPOINTMENT OF MR. NITESH KUMAR SINHA (02601971) AS AN INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTOR 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and pursuant to the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mr. Nitesh 
Kumar Sinha (DIN : 02601971), who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for 
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and who is 
eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
Member under Section 160(1) of the Act signifying his intention to propose Mr. Sinha’s candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable 
to retire by rotation, for a term of five consecutive years commencing from 1st February, 2021 upto 31st 
January, 2026.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) 
and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
 
ITEM NO. 6 – APPOINTMENT OF MR. NIMISH ARORA (01982312) AS THE MANAGING DIRECTOR 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Act and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Nimish Arora (DIN: 
01982312) as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company, for a period of 5 
(five) years with effect from 29th June, 2021 upto 28th June, 2026 upon the terms & conditions of 
appointment including the payment of remuneration, perquisites & other benefits and including the 
remuneration to be paid in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the 
tenure of his appointment, as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this 
Meeting, with liberty to the Board of Directors (including its Committee thereof) to alter and vary the 
terms & conditions of the said Appointment in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of 
Directors and Mr. Nimish Arora.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including its Committee thereof) be and is hereby 
authorised to revise the remuneration of Mr. Nimish Arora from time to time to the extent the Board of 
Directors may deem appropriate, provided that such revision is within the overall limits of the 
managerial remuneration as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto, 
and/or any guidelines prescribed by the Government from time to time.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) 
and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
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Place: Delhi             
Dated: 04.09.2021  

       By Order of the Board 
For Aashrit Capital Limited  

       
 

                                                                         Sd/- 
Lalit Sethi 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTES: 
 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE 
“MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF 
HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT 
APPOINTING THE PROXY SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF 
THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
MEETING. 
 
A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND 
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 
OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT 
OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A 
SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER 
PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.  
 

2. M/s Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 07814N), were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2017 to hold office until 
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the financial year 2022-23, 
subject to ratification of their appointment by the members at every Annual General Meeting, as may be 
applicable. 
Subsequent to the Notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on May 07, 2018 amending 
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the mandatory requirement to place 
the matter relating to appointment of Auditors for ratification by members at every annual general 
meeting has been omitted. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of 
the Statutory Auditors at this Annual General Meeting. 
 

3. Additional Information, pursuant to regulation 36 of (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 in respect of director seeking appointment or re-appointment at the Annual General 
Meeting, is annexed hereto. The director has furnished consent/declaration for his appointment as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

4. Corporate members are requested to send to the Company, a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution, 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 
 

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 
23rd day of September, 2021 to Thursday, 30th day of September, 2021 (both days inclusive).  
 

6. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 
will be entitled to vote. 
 

7. The Member having physical shares are requested to notify immediately any change in their registered 
address with the postal identity number and quoting their folio number. The members holding shares in 
demat form are required to update their address through their depositories. 
 

8. The Members are requested to write their folio number/ DP ID/Client ID in the attendance slip for 
attending the meeting. 
 

9. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 
securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their 
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PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their Demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company / RTA. 

 
10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) had, vide Notification Nos. SEBI/ LAD-

NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th June, 2018 and SEBI/LADNRO/GN/2018/49 dated 30th November, 2018, 
directed that the transfer of securities would be carried out in dematerialised form only with effect from 
1st April, 2019, except in case of transmission or transposition of physical shares. However, the transfer 
deed(s) lodged prior to the 1st April, 2019 deadline and returned due to deficiency in the document, may 
be re-lodged for transfer even after the deadline of 1st April, 2019 with RTA or the Company. 

 
11. In view of the above and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio 

management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their 
holding to dematerialised form. Members can contact the Company or RTA for assistance in this regard. 
 

12. The Register of Director’s and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 
Section 170 and Register of Contract or arrangement in which director are interested maintained under 
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for Inspection by the Members at the Registered 
Office of the Company on all days, except Saturdays and Sundays, between 11:00 A.M. and 1:00 P.M. 
and also at the Annual General Meeting. 
    

13. A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the AGM is given along with this Annual Report as 
per the requirement of the “Secretarial Standards - 2” on General Meetings. 
 

14. Please note that in accordance with the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members 
are entitled to make nominations in respect of the Equity Shares held by them. Members desirous of 
making nominations may procure the prescribed form SH-13 from the Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agents, skyline Financial Services Private Limited and have it duly filled, signed and sent back to them, 
in respect of shares held in physical form. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode, should file 
their nomination with their Depository Participant (DP). 
 

15. As a measure of economy and a step toward green initiative, Members are requested to bring their copy 
of Annual Report to the meeting. Members/ Proxies should bring the attendance slip duly filled in and 
signed for attending the meeting. 
 

16. To promote green initiative, members are requested to register their e-mail addresses through their 
Depository Participants for sending the future communications by e-mail. Members holding the shares in 
physical form may register their e-mail addresses through the RTA, giving reference of their Folio 
Number. 
 

17. The Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent in electronic mode to Members 
whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s). Physical copy of the 
Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent to those Members who have not 
registered their e-mail IDs with the Company or Depository Participant(s). Members who have received 
the Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip in electronic mode are requested to print the 
Attendance Slip and submit a duly filled in Attendance Slip at the registration counter to attend the 
AGM. 
 

18. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the 
Company is pleased to provide the facility to Members to exercise their right to vote by electronic means. 
The e-voting period will commence at 09.00 a.m. on Sunday, 26th September, 2021 and will end at 5.00 
p.m. on Wednesday, 29th September, 2021. The Company has appointed Mr. Rahul Dhupar, Practicing 
Company Secretary, having Membership No. 9446 to act as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the scrutiny 
of the votes cast. The Members desiring to vote through electronic mode may refer to the detailed 
procedure on e-voting given note no. 18.  
 

19. The facility for voting through ballot will also be made available at the AGM, and members attending the 
AGM who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting will be able to exercise their right at the 
AGM. Shareholders who have not cast their vote electronically, by remote e-voting may only cast their 
vote at the AGM through ballot paper. 
 

20. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for inspection 
at the Registered Office of the Company and copies thereof shall also be made available for inspection in 
physical or electronic form at the registered Office of the Company during office hours on all working 
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days, except Saturdays, between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to and inclusive of the date of the Annual 
General Meeting also such documents are available at the meeting. 
 

21. In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 Read with the rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 it is mandatory on the part of the Company to provide e-
Voting facility. Company is providing facility for Voting by electronic means and the business may be 
transacted through such voting. 
 
The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:- 
 

i. The voting period begins on Sunday, 26th September 2021 at 09.00 AM and ends on Wednesday, 
29th September 2021 at 5.00 PM. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date Tuesday, 21st 
September 2021, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 
CDSL for voting thereafter. 
 

ii. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 
under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-
voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been 
observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders 
is at a negligible level.  
 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple 
user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  
 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register 
again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing 
ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 
 

iv. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode are allowed to vote through their Demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their Demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can 
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visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
 www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user 
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress 
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
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Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 
23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 
  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 
v. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 
vi. Click on Shareholders. 

 
vii. Now Enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
 

viii. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

ix. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted 
on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 
x. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

 

 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders) 

 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA 
or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 
 OR Date 
of Birth 
(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 
 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 
xi. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
xii. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions 
of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting 
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

xiii. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice.  
 

xiv. Click on the EVSN of AASHRIT CAPITAL LIMTED (Formerly Known as Jalan Cement Works 
Limited) on which you choose to vote. 
 

xv. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 
 

xvi. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
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xvii. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click 
on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 
 

xviii. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

xix. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option 
on the Voting page. 
 

xx. If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then enter the User ID and the 
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 
system. 
 

xxi. Note for Non-Individual Shareholders & Custodians-For Remote Voting only:  
o Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.  
o A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  
o After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 
on.  

o The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

o A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 
scrutinizer to verify the same. 

o Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory 
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
jalancementworklimited@gmail.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same 
in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.   
 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 
 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 
 
2. For Demat shareholders - please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP)  
 
3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through 
Depository. 
 
If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, 
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542/43. 
 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 
Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon 
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 
 

Details of Directors seeking Re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
(In pursuance of Regulation 36 of SEBI Listing Regulations) 

 
Name of 
Director 

Heena Khurana 
Nagpal 

Nitesh Kumar 
Sinha 

Nimish Arora Babita Kumar 

Date of Birth 02.09.1986 25.01.1981 14.09.1983 01.10.1976 
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Age (Years) 34 40 37 44 

Date of 
Appointment 

01.04.2016 01.02.2021 30.04.2015 29.06.2021 

Qualification Company Secretary Company 
Secretary 

Chartered 
Accountant 

Graduate 

Terms and 
condition of 
Appointment/r
e-appointment 

Re-appointment as 
Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director   

Appointment as 
Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

Appointment as 
Managing Director 
of the Company  

Appointment as 
Non-Executive Non-
Independent 
Director Retiring by 
rotation and being 
eligible offer herself 
for re-appointment 

Details of 
remuneration 

NIL NIL Rs. 24 Lakh Per 
Annum 

NIL 

Relations with 
Other Director 
(Inter-Se) 
 

None None None None 

Expertise in 
specific 
functional 
areas 

She is having rich 
experience in the 
field of 
Corporate Laws 

He is having rich 
experience in the 
field of Corporate 
Laws 

He is a Chartered 
Accountant by 
qualification having 
in-depth knowledge 
of Taxation, 
Accounts. 

She is a competent 
professional having 
a vast knowledge 
and experience in 
areas of handling 
operations, HR, 
Administration, IT, 
Legal and Liasion. 

Directorship 
held in Other 
listed 
Companies  

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Chairman/ 
Member of the 
Committee of 
the Board of 
Directors of 
the Company  

Member in Audit 
Committee 
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee and 
Stakeholder 
relationship 
Committee 

Member in Audit 
Committee 
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee and 
Stakeholder 
relationship 
Committee 

NIL Member in Audit 
Committee 
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee and 
Stakeholder 
relationship 
Committee 

Number of 
Shares held 

NIL NIL 651350 10 

* Committee positions of only Audit, Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance and Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee included. 
 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
(Pursuant to Section 102 of Companies Act, 2013) 

 
The following Explanatory Statement sets out all the material facts relating to the Item Nos. 3 to 6 of the 
accompanying Notice dated 4th September, 2021. 
 
In respect of item No. 3 
 
Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal is currently an Independent Director of the Company and the Chairperson 
of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’). 
 
Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office 
upto 31st March, 2021 and is eligible for re-appointment for a second term on the Board of the Company 
as an Independent Director. Based on the recommendations of the NRC, the Board of Directors propose 
the re-appointment of Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal as an Independent Director of the Company, not 
liable to retire by rotation, for a second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from 1st April, 
2021 to 31st March, 2026 subject to the approval of the Members by a Special Resolution. The Company 
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has in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act received a notice from a Member proposing her candidature for 
the office of Director. 
 
Based on the performance evaluation of the Independent Directors and as per the recommendations of 
the NRC, given her background, experience and contribution, the Board is of the opinion that Mrs. 
Nagpal’s continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is therefore desirable 
to continue to avail her services as an Independent Director. 
 
The Company has received a declaration from Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal confirming that she meets the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’). In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Mrs. 
Nagpal has confirmed that she is not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be 
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact her ability to discharge her duties. Mrs. Nagpal has 
also confirmed that she is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI Order or 
any such authority pertaining to enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment of Directors by the 
listed companies. Further, Mrs. Nagpal is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of 
Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as Director, subject to re-appointment by the 
Members. Mrs. Nagpal has confirmed that she is in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to her registration 
with the data bank of Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs 
(‘IICA’).  
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Nagpal fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the SEBI Listing 
Regulations for re-appointment as an Independent Director and that she is independent of the 
Management. The terms and conditions of the re-appointment of Independent Directors would be made 
available for inspection to the Members by sending a request along with their DP/Client ID or Folio No. 
from their registered email address to the Company at jalancementworklimited@gmail.com. 
 
Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal is a fellow member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act, Regulation 17 of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, the re-
appointment of Mrs. Nagpal as an Independent Director is now placed for the approval of the Members 
by a Special Resolution. 
 
The Board commends the Special Resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for 
approval of the Members.  
 
Except Mrs. Nagpal, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of the Company and their 
respective relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the 
accompanying Notice. Mrs. Nagpal is not related to any other Director or KMP of the Company.  
 
In respect of item No. 4 
 
Mrs. Babita Kumar (DIN: 09214531) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect 
from 29th June, 2021 by the Board of Directors under Section 161 of the Act. In terms of Section 161(1) 
of the Act, Mrs. Babita Kumar holds office only upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
but is eligible for appointment as a Director. A notice under Section 160(1) of the Act has been received 
from a Member signifying his intention to propose Mrs. Kumar’s appointment as a Director. 
 
Mrs. Babita Kumar, 45, is a graduate from Delhi University and has been involved in various positions 
since 2007 as part of Aarone Group. She started her career as a HR and Admin Professional. 
 
She is a competent professional having a vast knowledge and experience of more than 20 years in areas 
of handling Operations, HR, Administration, IT, legal and Liasion. 
 
The Board of Directors thus recommends the Resolution at Item No. 4 of this Notice for your approval. 
 
Except Mrs. Kumar, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of the Company and their 
respective relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the 
accompanying Notice. Mrs. Kumar is not related to any other Director or KMP of the Company. 
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In respect of item No. 5 
 
The Company received a notice from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, signifying 
his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha (DIN: 02601971) for the office of 
Independent Director of the Company.  
 
Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha, B. Com, FCS, LL.B is Company Secretary and is a designated partner of M/s N 
K S Law House LLP and has been engaged in rendering of Secretarial, Legal and Financial Services. He 
has a team of qualified Company Secretaries & Advocates, who work under the guidance and supervision 
of Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha. He is registered insolvency professional with Insolvency & Bankruptcy Board 
of India. He is in corporate practice and corporate litigation since more than fifteen years. 
 
In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. 
Nitesh Kumar Sinha fulfils the conditions specified in the Act for his appointment as an Independent 
Director. After taking into consideration the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, the Board is of the opinion that Mr. Sinha’s vast knowledge and varied experience will be of 
great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution at Item No.5 of this Notice relating to 
the appointment of Mr. Sinha as an “Independent Director”, not liable to retire by rotation for a period of 
five consecutive years w.e.f. 1st February, 2021 upto 31st January, 2026, for your approval.  
 
Mr. Sinha has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The 
Company has also received:- 
 
(i) the consent in writing to act as Director and 
(ii) intimation that he is not disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
(iii) a declaration to the effect that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director pursuant to any 
Order issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 
 
A copy of the draft letter for the appointment of Mr. Sinha as Independent Director setting out the terms 
& conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of 
the Company during normal business hours on any working day. 
 
Except, Mr. Sinha, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned 
or interested in the Resolution at Item No. 5 of the Notice. 
 
In respect of item No. 6 
 
The Board of Directors (based on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee) 
has appointed Mr. Nimish Arora (DIN: 01982312) as a Managing Director (Whole Time Key Managerial 
Personnel) of the Company for a term of five years from 29th June, 2021 to 28th June, 2026, upon the 
terms & Conditions hereinafter indicated, subject to the approval of Members. 
 
Mr. Nimish Arora, is a Chartered Accountant (2005) and B Com (Honors) by education. From 2002-2008, 
he has worked with prestigious professional firms such Sahni Natarajan & Bahl and Ernst & Young. 
With his rich consulting experience of over 6 years in the fields of transaction advisory, mergers and 
acquisitions, risk assurance, and taxation.  
 
Since 2008, he has been actively involved in multiple business ventures and companies in the fields of 
real estate development, retail, hospitality and finance. He has played an active role in the areas of 
finance, business development, sales and marketing of the various kinds of projects and rich experience 
in the dealing with banks, financial institutions. His involvement in the affairs of Aashrit Capital has 
added a new dimension to the company’s future prospects and opened new vistas for further expansion 
and business development and will take the company to newer heights. 
 
Mr. Arora is an active member and holds various positions in various industry forums and committees 
such as CII Delhi Chapter Committee on Retail Real Estate, North Zone Mentor – CREDAI Youth Wing, 
CREDAI National Committee on Direct & Indirect Taxes as well as a Board member of Entrepreneurs 
Organization – Gurgaon Chapter.  
 
He is also active fitness enthusiast and runs marathons across the world. 
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The principal terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Nimish Arora as the Managing Director 
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘MD’) is as follows: 
 

(a) Remuneration: 
 

Salary: Rs. 2,00,000/- p.m. 
 

(b) Perquisites: 
 

As per rules of the Company and admissible under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
 

(c) Other terms: 
 

1. He shall be entitled to reimbursement of travelling, entertainment and all other expenses 
actually and properly incurred in connection with the business by subject to the rules of the 
Company framed from time to time. 

2. He shall be entitled to reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by him 
in course of discharging his duties in his capacity as Managing Director. 

3. Either party may terminate the agreement by giving three months’ notice in writing without 
assigning any reason. 

4. Mr. Nimish Arora, as long as he functions as such, shall not be paid any sitting fee for 
attending meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof. 

 
In the event of no profit or the profit of the company is inadequate, during the currency of tenure of 
managerial personnel, the company may pay remuneration to the managerial remuneration not 
exceeding the limit under section II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 subject to the 
minimum remuneration as prescribed above including any statutory modifications or re-enactment 
thereof from time to time as prescribed by the Government. 
 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Nimish 
Arora’s vast knowledge and varied experience will be of great value to the Company and has 
recommended the Resolutions at Item No. 6 of this Notice relating to his appointment as a MD of the 
Company for a period of five years w.e.f. 29th June, 2021 upto 28th June, 2026 as an Ordinary 
Resolution for your approval. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Act, 
read with Schedule V to the Act, the terms of remuneration specified above are now being placed before 
the Members for their approval. 
 
Except, Mr. Nimish Arora, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are 
concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item No. 6 of the Notice. Mr. Arora is not related to any other 
Director or KMP of the Company.    

    
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Delhi                  
Dated: 04.09.2021  

    
 
 
 
 
 

By Order of the Board 
For Aashrit Capital Limited  

 
       

 
                                                                         Sd/- 

Lalit Sethi 
Company Secretary 
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REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 
Dear Members,  
 
Your Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report on the business and operation of the Company, 
along with Audited Accounts, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  

                                                            (Amount In Lakhs) 

Details Year Ended 31.03.2021 Year Ended 31.03.2020 

Total Income 1220.87 905.79 

Total Expenditure 1074.43 3556.52 
Less:Depreciation and amortization expenses 93.94 84.32 

       Finance Cost 28.24 31.20 

Profit/(Loss) before tax            146.45 (2650.72) 
Provision for Tax (268.26) (765.74) 

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (121.81) (1884.98) 
Transfer to Special Reserve NIL NIL 

 
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS 
During the year under review, your Company has suffered Net Losses of Rs. 121.81 Lakhs as compared 
to Net Losses of Rs. 1884.98 Lakhs in the previous financial year.Your Directors are strongly believes 
that in the coming financial year, your Company will be able to generate profitable business and will 
resort for better financial results.  
 
MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TO DATE OF REPORT 
There are no material changes and commitment, affecting the financial position of Company which has 
occurred between the end of financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and 
the date of this report other than those disclosed in the Annual report. 
 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
During the period under review, the Company has not changed its nature of business. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL  
The issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the Company is Rs 11,20,25,400 (Rupees Eleven Crore 
Twenty Lacs Twenty Five Thousand Four Hundred) divided into 1,12,02,540 (One Crore Twelve Lacs Two 
Thousands Five Hundred Forty) equity shares of Rs 10 each. 
 
There has been no change in the share capital of the Company during the year. 
 
DIVIDEND 
In order to conserve more resources for future requirements of the Company, your directors do not 
recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. Your Directors are hopeful that 
they will present a much strong financial statements in coming years. 
 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
The Company has not transferred any amount in Special Reserves for the financial year ended March 31, 
2021 due to loss suffered by the Company during the year.  
  

AUDITORS 
 
Statutory Auditor 
M/s Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 07814N) are the statutory Auditors of the 
Company. Pursuant to Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder has been 
received written consent from them for their continue term and also a certificate from them to the effect 
that their existing appointment is in accordance with the conditions prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.  
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STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT 
The Auditors’ Report on the financial statement for the financial year 2020-21 is self-explanatory The 
Report is self-explanatory and does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or 
disclaimer.  
 
INTERNAL AUDITOR 
During the year under review, Internal Audit of the Company has been carried out by M/S Goyal Hitesh 
& CO., & the same has appointed as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 
The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s RD & Associates, Company Secretaries as 
Secretarial Auditor for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. The Secretarial Audit Report is 
annexed herewith and marked as Annexure I to this Report. 
 

The Secretarial Auditors of the Company have submitted their report in form No. MR.3 as required under 
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2020-21. The Report is self-explanatory 
and does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer. The Report from 
part of this report as Annexure I. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, subject to the 
approval of the shareholders, has appointed Mrs. Babita Kumar as an Additional Director in the category 
of Non-Executive Non-Independent Director on June 29, 2021. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Babita Kumar retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 
 
The term of Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal as an Independent Director was expired on March 31, 2021. 
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, subject to approval 
of the shareholders, has approved the re-appointment of Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal as an Independent 
Director for the second term commencing from April 01, 2021 up to March 31, 2026. 
 
The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, subject to the 
approval of the shareholders, has appointed Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha as an Independent Director 
(Additional Director) to hold office for a term of five (5) years from February 1, 2021 upto January 31, 
2026.  
 
Mr. Nimish Arora, Director of the Company, has been appointed as Managing Director (Key Managerial 
Personnel) of the Company w.e.f. June 29, 2021 for a period of 5 years. 
 
Mr. Prateek Arora, Director and Managing Director of the Company, decided to pursue his other interest 
outside the Company and accordingly resigned from the Board from the closing hours of June 29, 2021.   
 
Brief profile of director appointed/re-appointed is given in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. 
 
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 
The independent directors have submitted a declaration of independence, stating that they meet the 
criteria of independence provided under section 149(6) of the Act, as amended, and regulation 16 of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations. The independent directors have also confirmed compliance with the provisions 
of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating 
to inclusion of their name in the databank of independent directors. 
 
The Board took on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the independent directors 
regarding them meeting the prescribed criteria of independence, after undertaking due assessment of the 
veracity of the same in terms of the requirements of regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
As per regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a detailed report on Corporate Governance is given in annexure which 
forms part of this group as Annexure II. 
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND COMPANY SECRETARY  
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Shalabh Gaur, Chief 
Financial Officer and Mr. Lalit Sethi, Company Secretary were formalized as the Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company. 
 
BOARD EVALUATION 
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The performance of the Board was 
evaluated by the Board on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, 
effectiveness of Board process, information and functioning etc. The Board and Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria 
such as the contribution of individual director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness 
on the issue to be discussed meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In a 
separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, performance of 
the Board as a whole and performance of Chairman was evaluated. 
 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY 
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a 
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and 
their remuneration as required under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination & 
Remuneration Policy of the Company is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure III to this Report. 
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, is annexed as annexure IV to this Board Report.  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Company has a Risk Management policy that defines the strategies and methodology to decide on 
the risk taking ability of the organization. 
 
The Company constantly reviews its exposure to various types of risk, whether it be regulatory, 
operational, environmental, financial or political. The Company has in place adequate systems to ensure 
compliance with all regulatory and statutory matters, reviews the same on a periodic basis and takes 
appropriate corrective action when necessary. 
 

EFFICIENT INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
Adequate internal controls have been laid down by the Company to safeguard and protect its assets as 
well as to improve the overall productivity of its operations. All the transactions are properly authorized, 
recorded and reported to the management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting 
Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The 
detailed process of review not only ensures reliability of control systems and legal compliances with 
applicable legislation, defined policies and processes but also reviews efficiency of systems and ensures 
safeguarding of tangible and intangible assets.  
 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions of 
Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the preparation of the annual 
accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021 and state that: 
 
a. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, the 

applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures; 
 

b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
company for that period; 
 

c. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
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d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
 

e. the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 

f. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
During the year under review no employee is covered as per rules 5(2) & (3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, therefore no statement is 
required be given showing the names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in 
excess of the limits set out in the said rules are not applicable. 
 
PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION 
The information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
 
i) the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year 2020-21: 
 
Mr. Prateek Arora, Managing Director of the Company has received the remuneration of Rs. 6,00,000 p.a. 
in the financial year 2020-21 and apart from Mr. Prateek Arora, none of the director has received the 
remuneration from the Company. Ratio of remuneration of Mr. Prateek Arora to the median 
Remuneration of employee is 3.76.  
 
ii) the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2020-21: 
 
 
Name Designation % Increase/(Decrease) in remuneration 
Mr. Prateek Arora Managing Director - 

Mr. Lalit Sethi Company Secretary  - 

Mr. Shalabh Gaur Chief Financial officer - 

 
iii) the percentage increase/(decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 
2020-21: (40.90%). 
 
iv) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 8 
 
v) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration: 

Amount in Lakh 

 2020-21 2019-20 Increase/(Decrease) in 
% 

Average Salary of Employee other than key 
Managerial Personnel  

2.07 2.90 (28.57%) 

Managing Director/Director 
CFO 
CS* 

6.00 
11.04 
7.93 

6.00 
11.04 
9.65 

- 
- 

(17.77%) 

 
vi) affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 
It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the 
Company. 
 
LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE 
The Company's equity shares are listed with Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Metropolitan Stock 
Exchange of India Limited.  
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In Compliance with the regulation 6(a), 7 and other applicable regulations of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (hereinafter referred to as “Delisting 
Regulations”), the Board of Directors of the Company, in their meeting held on 26th June, 2019 had 
approved the proposal of voluntary delisting of equity shares of the Company from Calcutta Stock 
Exchange Limited (“CSE”). Accordingly, an application seeking permission for delisting of equity shares 
had been submitted by the Company with Calcutta Stock Exchange. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
During the year, there were no contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company in accordance 
with the Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, there were related party transactions which 
are in the ordinary Course of business. The details of the transactions with related party are provided in 
the accompanying financial statements. 
 
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in line with 
the delegated authority. The following substantive Committees constituted by the Board function 
according to their respective roles and defined scope: 

 Audit Committee 

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
 
DISCLOSURES: 
 

A) EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed 
herewith as Annexure-V to this Report. The copy of annual Return will also be available at 
http://aashritcapital.com/annual-return.  
 
B) MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, 10 meetings of the Board of Directors were held as 
against the statutory minimum requirement of 4 times. None of the two Board Meetings have a gap of 
more than 120 days between them. The dates of meetings are mentioned below:  
 

Sr. No. Date 
1. 29.06.2020 

2. 02.07.2020 

3. 27.07.2020 

4. 12.08.2020 
5. 04.09.2020 

6. 15.09.2020 

7. 06.11.2020 
8. 30.01.2021 

9. 13.02.2021 

10. 01.03.2021 

 
C) COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The Audit Committee as on date comprises of three members, including one is Non-Executive Director 
viz. Mrs. Babita Kumar and two are Non-executive Independent director viz. Mrs. Heena Khurana 
Nagpal, Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha. Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal is heading the Committee. 
 
D) COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on date comprises of three members, viz. Mrs. Babita 
Kumar, Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal and Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha. Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha is heading 
the Committee.  
 
E) COMPOSITION OF STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
The Stakeholder Relationship Committee as on date comprises of three members, including one is Non-
executive Director viz. Mrs. Babita Kumar and two are Non-executive Independent director viz. Mrs. 
Heena Khurana Nagpal, Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha. Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal is heading the 
Committee.  
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F) VIGIL MACHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has adopted a vigil 
mechanism/whistle blower policy of the Company. The policy provides a framework for directors and 
employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle blower 
through an email or to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy 
can be accessed on the Company's website at the link: www.aashritcapital.com. 
 
G) DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace and during the year under 
review, your Board has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to consider and redress 
complaints of sexual harassment & also adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of 
sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. 
 
During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has received no complaints on sexual harassment. 
 
H) PATICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENT MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITY 
PROVIDED 
Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided are provided in 
the financial statements. 
 
SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANY  
Presently the Company has no subsidiary, Joint Venture or associate Company. 

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO. 
Information required to be given pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming  part  of the Director's report for the year  
ended  31st March, 2021 are given below : 
 
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
 
(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 
Your Company is conscious about its responsibility to conserve energy, power and other energy sources 
wherever possible. We emphasis towards a safe and clean environment and continue to adhere to all 
regulatory requirements and guidelines. 
  
(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy; 
The Company has been taking energy saving measures viz., Use of energy saver electrical equipments, 
LED fittings are provided inside the building for common area lighting in the projects of the Company, 
Efficient ventilation system in offices and the projects of the Company. 
 
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments;  
Your company has nil capital investment on energy conservation equipments. 
 
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION- 
 
(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption; N.A. 
(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution; N.A. 
(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of 
the financial year)- N.A. 
(a) the details of technology imported; 
(b) the year of import; 
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; 
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and 
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. N.A. 
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO. 
Details of Foreign Exchange, earnings and Outgo are given as below: 
        Year 2021                         Year 2020 

                                               (Amt.)   (Amt.) 
 Foreign Exchange earning                                           Nil         Nil 
 Foreign Exchange outgoing                                Nil         Nil 
 
APPRECIATION 
Directors wish to place on record their deep thanks and gratitude to; 
 
a) The Government as well as their respective Departments and Development Authorities connected with 
the business of the Company, Bankers of the Company for their co-operation and continued support. 
 
b) The Shareholders for the trust and confidence reposed. 
 
c) The Board also takes this opportunity to express its sincere appreciation for the efforts put in by the 
officers and employees at all levels in achieving the results and hopes that they would continue their 
sincere and dedicated endeavour towards attainment of better working results during the current year. 
 

Reg. Office  
Select City Walk,  
6th Floor, A-3,  
District Centre, 
Saket, New Delhi  
Pin Code 110017  
 
Place: Delhi                  
Dated: 04.09.2021  

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Nimish Arora 

Managing Director 
DIN: 01982312 

161A, Sainik Farms,  
Ambedkar Nagar  

New Delhi 110062 

        By Order of the Board 
For Aashrit Capital Limited  

 
     Sd/- 

Babita Kumar 
Director 

DIN: 09214531 
Flat No. 8 J1/22/2 Unit 2 Khirki  

Extn. Near Sasta General Store, 
Malviya Nagar, Delhi-110017  
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2021 [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
The Members 
Aashrit Capital Limited 
Select Citywalk, 6th Floor A-3,  
District Centre, Saket  
New Delhi 110017  
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Aashrit Capital Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’).  
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 
that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2021 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2021 according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013; the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): — 
 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 
 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009 
 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 
 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client; 
 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
 
Based on the information produced before us, during the period the company has applied for voluntary 
delisting of equity shares of company from Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and 
 
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and 
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges. 
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on 
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, the 
Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company: 
 
(a) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules, regulations, circulars, notification issued by Reserve Bank 
of India from time to time for Non-Banking Finance Company 
 
I further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. Adequate notice is given to all 
directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Except where consent of the directors was received for 
scheduling meeting at a shorter notice, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance. 
 
A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions at Board Meetings and 
Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the 
Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 
size and its operations to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 
 

        For RD & Associates 
                                                 Company Secretaries, 

     Sd/- 
                          (CS. Rahul Dhupar) 

                             Proprietor 
                           CP No.9863 

Membership No. F9446 
                                                                                      UDIN: F009446C000805835 

        
Dated: 19.08.2021 
Place:  New Delhi 
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This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral 
part of this report. 
 
ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
To, 
The Members 
Aashrit Capital Limited 
Select Citywalk, 6th Floor A-3,  
District Centre, Saket  
New Delhi 110017  
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. I believe that the 
process and practices I followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained Management Representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

 
5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

 
               For RD & Associates 

                                                 Company Secretaries, 
     Sd/- 

                          (CS. Rahul Dhupar) 
                             Proprietor 

                           CP No.9863 
Membership No. F9446 

                                                                                      UDIN: F009446C000805835 
        
Dated: 19.08.2021 
Place:  New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE [II] TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 
Aashrit Capital Limited believes that good Corporate Governance is essential to achieve long term 
corporate goals and enhance stakeholders' value, therefore, the board of directors are committed to 
comply with all compliance relating to corporate governance report. Our Corporate Governance is based 
on principle of equity, fairness, integrity, transparency, accountability and commitment to value. Your 
Company is trying to adopt best practices for corporate governance, disclosure standard and enhanced 
shareholder value while protecting the interest of all other stakeholders including clients, suppliers and 
its employee.  
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS:  
The Board of Directors is a combination of experienced Executive, Non-Executive and Non-Executive 
Independent director formed by the shareholders, provides and evaluates the strategic directions of the 
Company; formulates and reviews management policies, serves and protects the overall interests of 
shareholders to ensure long-term value creation for stakeholders. 
 
Composition: 
At present, the Board of Directors comprised of Four (4) directors, of whom one (1) is Executive Directors 
viz. Mr. Nimish Arora and One is Non-Executive Director viz. Mrs. Babita Kumar and Two are Non-
Executive Independent directors viz. Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha and Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal. In order 
to promote gender diversity, Company has two woman directors on the Board. 
 
BOARD MEETINGS: During the financial year 2020-21, Ten (10) meetings of the Board of Directors were 
held on 29th June, 2020, 2nd July, 2020, 27th July, 2020, 12th August, 2020, 4th September, 2020, 15th 
September, 2020, 6th November, 2020, 30th January, 2021, 13th February, 2021 and 1st March, 2021 
and attendance of the Directors in these meetings were as follows:- 
 

Name of Director Category No. of 
Board 
Meeting 
held 

No. of 
Board 
Meeting 
attended 

Last 
Annual 
General 
Meeting 
attended 

Directorship 
in other 
Companies 

No. of Membership/ 
chairmanship of 
Board committees 
in other Companies 
Member Chairpers

on  

Mr. Prateek Arora  Managing 
Director 

10 10 Yes 0 0 0 

Mr. Nimish Arora  Managing 
Director 

10 10 Yes 17 0 0 

Ms. Roli Gupta  Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

10 8 No 0 0 0 

Mrs. Heena 
Khurana Nagpal 

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

10 10 Yes 0 0 0 

Mrs. Babita 
Kumar 

Non-Executive 
Director 

10 0 No 0 0 0 

Mr. Nitesh Kumar 
Sinha 

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

10 2 No 2 0 0 

*Mr. Prateek Arora resigned from the post of Director and Managing Director w.e.f. close of 
business hours on 29.06.2021. 
*Mr. Nimish Arora appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. 29.06.2021. 
*Ms. Roli Gupta resigned from the post of Independent Director w.e.f. close of business hours on 
31.01.2021.  
*Mrs. Babita Kumar was appointed as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director w.e.f. 
29.06.2021. 
*Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 01.02.2021. 
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Shareholding of Non-Executive Director(s) and relationship between the directors 
As per declaration made to the Company by all the directors about their shareholding, Mr. Nimish Arora 
Managing Director is holding 651350 equity shares in the Company. Mrs. Babita Kumar is holding 10 
equity shares in the Company. None of the director is relative of any other director. 
 
Meeting of Independent Directors 
Pursuant to Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 
and subject to the provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, at least one meeting of the 
independent directors must be held to review the performance of non-independent directors and the 
Board as a whole and evaluated the performance of the Chairperson of the Company after considering 
the views of executive director and non-executive director also discussions were also being held on 
timeliness of flow of information between the management and directors of the company. However 
presently Company is having only two non executive independent director.  
 
The Board of Directors formulated the familiarization programme for independent directors for 
understanding of their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the 
Company operates, business model of the Company. The Company has also adopted a structured 
programme for orientation and training of independent directors at the time of their joining and on time 
to time basis so as to enable them to understand the Company's operations, business, industry and 
environment. The familiarization programme is available on the Company's official website under the 
link: www.aashritcapital.com 
 
COMMITTEE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The Company has constituted three (3) Committees in accordance with the provision of Regulation 18, 
19, 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015. 
 
1. Audit Committee (Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulations 2015) 
 
The role and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the provisions of 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 of the Listing Agreement entered with 
Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited. The terms of 
reference of the Committee are wide enough to cover the matters specified for Audit Committee under the 
Listing Agreement and Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Audit Committee as on date comprises of three members, including Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha and 
Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal, Non-Executive Independent Directors and Mrs. Babita Kumar, Non-
Executive director. Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal is heading the Committee. 
 
During the financial year 2020-21, 4 (Four) Audit Committee meetings were held on 27th July, 2020, 15th 
September, 2020, 6th November, 2020 and 13th February 2021. Necessary quorum was present for all the 
meetings. The time gaps between any two Audit Committee meetings were not more than four months. 
 
Attendance of each Member at the Audit Committee meeting held during the year: 
 

Name of the Member 
Director 

Member/Chairperson No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings 
attended 

Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal Chairperson 4 4 
Ms. Roli Gupta* Member 4 3 
Mr. Nimish Arora**  Member 4 4 

Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha* Member 4 1 
Mrs. Babita Kumar** Member 4 0 

 
* On 01.02.2021 Audit Committee was reconstituted. Ms. Roli Gupta resigned and Mr. Nitesh 
Kumar Sinha appointed as a member of Audit Committee. 
 
** On 29.06.2021 Audit Committee was again reconstituted. Mr. Nimish Arora resigned and Mrs. 
Babita Kumar appointed as a member of Audit Committee.   
 



ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 
 

 
 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
During the financial year 2020-21, 2 (Two) Meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were 
held on 29th June, 2020 and 30th January, 2021. Necessary quorum was present for the meetings.  
 
The composition of the Committee is as under: 
 
The Nomination and remuneration as on date comprises of three members including Mr. Nitesh Kumar 
Sinha and Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal as Non-Executive Independent Directors and Mrs. Babita Kumar 
as Non-Executive director. Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha is heading the Committee. 
 

Name of the Member 
Director 

Member/Chairperson No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings 
attended 

Ms. Roli Gupta* Chairperson 2 2 
Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha* Chairperson 2 2 

Mrs. Heena Khurana  Member 2 2 
Mr. Nimish Arora**  Member 2 2 
Mrs. Babita Kumar** Member 2 2 

 
* On 01.02.2021 Nomination and Remuneration Committee was reconstituted. Ms. Roli Gupta 
resigned and Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha appointed as a Chairperson of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. 
 
** On 29.06.2021 Nomination and Remuneration Committee was again reconstituted. Mr. Nimish 
Arora resigned and Mrs. Babita Kumar appointed as a member of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. 
 
Details of remuneration of directors for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 (Rs. in lakhs) 
 

Director Salary Perquisites and 
Benefits  

Bonus/Commission Sitting 
Fees 

Total 

Executive Director 6.00 Nil Nil Nil 6.00 

Non-Executive 
Director 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 
The Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to carry out handling of transfer and 
transmission of shares, issue of duplicate/ re-materialized shares and consolidation and splitting of 
certificates etc. and handling of shareholders’/investors’ grievances. The brief terms of reference of the 
Committee include redressing of shareholders’ and investors’ complaints like transfer of shares, non-
receipt of Annual Reports, non-receipt of declared dividends etc. and to expedite the process of share 
transfer.  
 
Terms of reference 
1. To consider and review the queries/complaints received from Share Holders 
2. To take steps to redress queries/ complaints and ensure speedy satisfaction to shareholders/ 

investors. 
3. With a view to expediting the process of share transfer etc., on fast track basis, the Board has 

delegated the powers of approving transfer etc. to Company Secretary of the Company. 
4. To work under the control & supervision of the Board of Directors. 
 
Meeting and attendance: 
The Constitution of the Committee and the attendance of each member of the Committee are given below: 
 
During the year under review 1 (One) meeting of Stakeholder and relationship Committee was held on 29th 
June, 2020, as the company is complying law in its true spirit therefore no complaints were received from 
any stakeholder of the company.    
 

Name of the Member 
Director 

Member/Chairperson No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings 
attended 

Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal Chairperson 1 1 

Ms. Roli Gupta* Member 1 1 
Mr. Nimish Arora**  Member 1 1 

Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha* Member 1 0 

Mrs. Babita Kumar** Member 1 0 

 
* On 01.02.2021 Stakeholder and relationship Committee was reconstituted. Ms. Roli Gupta 
resigned and Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha appointed as a member of Stakeholder and relationship 
Committee. 
 
** On 29.06.2021 Stakeholder and relationship Committee was again reconstituted. Mr. Nimish 
Arora resigned and Mrs. Babita Kumar appointed as a member of Stakeholder and relationship 
Committee. 
 
During the year under review, no complaint was received from the shareholder by the Company/Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) viz. M/s. Skyline Financial Service Pvt. Ltd. Presently no complaint is 
pending so far. 
 
REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS 
 
The Non-Executive Directors are neither paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board 
and/or any Committee thereof nor any commission on net profits. 
 
Details of remuneration paid to Directors of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021 
is as under: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Sitting 
Fee 

Salary Perquisites 
and 
Benefits 

Share in 
Profit / 
Incentives 

Total 

1 Mr. Prateek Arora  - 6,00,000 - - 6,00,000 

2 Mr. Nimish Arora  - - - - - 

3 Ms. Roli Gupta  - - - - - 

4 Mrs. Heena Khurana  - - - - - 

5 Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha - - - - - 
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
Date and venue of last three Annual General Meeting and General Meetings. 
 

Nature of Meeting Date and Time Venue Special 
Resolution 
passed 

Annual General 
Meeting 

30th September, 
2020, 2:00 PM 

SELECT CITYWALK, 6TH FLOOR, A-3,  
DISTRICT CENTRE, SAKET,  
NEW DELHI-110017. 

 

NO 

Annual General 
Meeting 

30th September, 
2019, 2:00 PM 

SELECT CITYWALK, 6TH FLOOR, A-3,  
DISTRICT CENTRE, SAKET,  
NEW DELHI-110017. 

 

NO 

Annual General 
Meeting 

29th September, 
2018, 10:00 AM 

SELECT CITYWALK, 6TH FLOOR, A-3,  
DISTRICT CENTRE, SAKET,  
NEW DELHI-110017. 

 

NO 

Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting 

19th April, 2018, 
10:00AM 
 

SELECT CITYWALK, 6TH FLOOR, A-3,  
DISTRICT CENTRE, SAKET,  
NEW DELHI-110017. 

 

YES 

 
DISCLOSURES 
  

 There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties which are conflicting with 
Company’s interest.  

 SEBI vide its Adjudication Order No. Order/BD/AB/2020-21/10317-10322 dated February 4, 2021 
imposed penalty of Rs. 20 Lakh in the matter of Birla Pacific Medspa Ltd except this no strictures or 
penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or by the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority on any matters related to capital markets during the 
last three years. 

 The Company has not adopted a treatment different from that prescribed in Ind AS. While preparing the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021, the management has ensured 
that all Ind AS have been properly followed and there has been no deviation from this practice. 

 The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and 
mitigation plans and periodical review to ensure that the critical risks are controlled by the executive 
management through means of a properly defined framework. 

 The Company has not come out with any public issue or right issue etc. during the financial year under 
review. 

 The Company has complied with all the applicable requirements of the Listing Agreement with the stock 
exchange. The Company has adopted a suitable reporting system on compliances of all major laws 
applicable to the Company, which is placed before the Board of Directors of the Company at its periodic 
meeting. 

 The Company has not adopted the non-mandatory requirements of the Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
 
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 
 

 The Company has obtained a certificate from RD & Associates, Company Secretaries that none of the 
directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority. The certificate form part of this report. 

 The Company has obtained a certificate from RD & Associates, Company Secretaries regarding Compliance 
of condition of Corporate Governance as stipulated under listing regulations. The certificate form part of 
this report. 

 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 

 The Company communicates with the shareholders at large through its Annual report and publication of 
financial results. 

 The Board of Directors of the Company approves and takes on record the Un-audited financial results and 
the results are announced to all the stock exchanges where the shares of the company are listed.  
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 Further the highlights of the quarterly results in the prescribed Performa are published in the newspapers. 

 
 The financial results are displayed on www.aashritcapital.com 

 
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

The Managing Director & CFO of the Company give annual certification on financial reporting and internal 
controls to the Board in terms of regulation 17(8) OF SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The annual certificate form part of this report. 
 
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 
 
Date & Time 30th September 2021, 02:00 P.M. 
Venue Select Citywalk, 6th Floor, A-3, District Centre, Saket, 

New Delhi-110017 

Financial Year The Company follows the period of 01st April to 31st 
March, as the financial year.  

Date of Book Closure Thursday, 23rd September 2021 to Thursday, 30th 

September 2021 

Dividend payment date Not Applicable, As the Board has not proposed the 
Dividend 

Listing on Stock Exchange Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Scrip Code CSE:020091 
MSEIL:AASHRIT 

Market Price data  The equity shares of the Company are listed on Calcutta 
Stock Exchange Limited and Metropolitan Stock 
Exchange of India Limited and no trading is available at 
Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Metropolitan 
Stock Exchange of India Limited therefore Market price 
data for the financial year 2020-21 is not available. 

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity INE172F01018, as on 31st March 2021, 99.90% shares 
were in dematerialised form. 

Registrar and Transfer Agents M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 
Ist Floor, D-153A,  Okhla Industrial Area, Phase I, New 
Delhi 110020  

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or 
any other convertible instruments   

Company does not have any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or 
any other Convertible Instruments. 

Address of correspondence: Aashrit Capital Limited 
Select City Walk, A-3 District Centre  
6th Floor, Saket, New Delhi-110017 

Plant Location N.A. 

 
SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 
 
Share transfers in physical form are generally registered within a fortnight from the date of receipt 
provided the documents are found to be in order. Share Transfer & Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance 
Committee and Executive Share Transfer Committee consider and approve the transfer proposals. 
 
The Company affirms that no shareholders' complaint was lying pending as on 31st March, 2021 as per 
RTA records as well as compliant shown on SCRORS (SEBI PORTAL FOR INVESTORS WHERE THEY CAN 
FILE COMPLIANT) 
 
No Request has been received for dematerialization of shares. However if it will receive we affirm generally 
processed within 21 days of receipt of the request and the confirmation is given to the respective 
depositories i.e., National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL). 
 
DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE AS ON 31ST MARCH 2021 
 
Share Or Debenture Holding 

Of Nominal Value 
Share or Debenture holders Share or Debenture Amount 

Rs.                    Rs.   Number % of Total Rs. % of Total 
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) 
Up to - 5000 71 75.51 7600 0.01 

5001 - 10000 0 0.00 0 0.00 

10001 - 20000 0 0.00 0 0.00 

20001 - 30000 0 0.00 0 0.00 

30001 – 40000 0 0.00 0 0.00 

40001 – 50000 0 0.00 0 0.00 

50001 – 100000 0 0.00 0 0.00 

100001 and Above 23 24.49 112017800 99.99 
TOTAL 94 100.00 112025400 100.00 

 
 Category No. of shares 

held 
Percentage of 
Shareholding 

A. Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group   
(1) Indian 5950350 53.12 

(2) Foreign - - 

 Total  5950350 53.12 
B. Public Shareholding   
(1) Institutions - - 
(a) Mutual Funds/UTI - - 

(b) Financial Institutions/Banks - - 

(c) Foreign Institutional Investors - - 

(d) Any Other  - - 

 Sub Total (A)   
(2) Non Institutions   

(a) Bodies Corporate 130 0.00 

(b) Individuals 5252060 46.88 

(c) Any Other - - 

 Sub Total (B) 5252190 46.88 
 Total (A+B) 11202540 100 
 
 
CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
We hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Management 
Personnel, affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for 
Directors/Management Personnel for the financial year 2020-21.  
 
 
 
 
Reg. Office  
Select City Walk,  
6th Floor, A-3,  
District Centre, 
Saket, New Delhi  
Pin Code 110017  
 
Place: Delhi                  
Dated: 04.09.2021  

 
 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
Nimish Arora 

Managing Director 
DIN: 01982312 

161A, Sainik Farms,  
Ambedkar Nagar  

New Delhi 110062 

        By Order of the Board 
Aashrit Capital Limited 

 
 

     
 Sd/- 

Babita Kumar 
Director 

DIN: 09214531 
Flat No. 8 J1/22/2 Unit 2 Khirki  

Extn. Near Sasta General Store, 
Malviya Nagar, Delhi-110017  
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ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To, 
The Members 
Aashrit Capital Limited 
(Formerly Known as Jalan Cement Works Limited) 
Select Citywalk, 6th Floor A-3,  
District Centre, Saket  
New Delhi 110017  
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
Aashrit Capital Limited having CIN L65923DL1972PLC317436 and having registered office at Select 
Citywalk, 6th Floor A-3, District Centre, Saket New Delhi 110017, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
  
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director DIN Original date of 
appointment 

Date of 
appointment at 
current 
designation 

Current 
Designation 

1. NIMISH ARORA 01982312 13/08/2016 

 

13/08/2012 

 

Director 

2. NITESH KUMAR 
SINHA  

02601971 01/02/2021 01/02/2021 

 

Additional 
Director 

3. HEENA KHURANA 

 

03147698  30/09/2016 01/04/2016 Director 

4. PRATEEK ARORA 

 

07189849  13/08/2016 13/08/2016 

 

Managing 
Director 

 
 

               For RD & Associates 
                                                 Company Secretaries, 

      
 
 Sd/- 

                          (CS. Rahul Dhupar) 
                             Proprietor 

                           CP No.9863 
Membership No. F9446 

                                                                                 UDIN: F009446C000807980 
        
Dated: 19.08.2021 
Place:  New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
To, 
 
The Members 
Aashrit Capital Limited 
(Formerly Known as Jalan Cement Works Limited) 
Select Citywalk, 6th Floor A-3,  
District Centre, Saket  
New Delhi 110017  
 
 
1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Aashrit Capital Limted (“the Company”), contains 

details as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D 
of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”) (‘applicable criteria’) with 
respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2021. This certificate is required by the 
Company for annual submission to the Stock exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of the 
Company. 

 
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 
 
2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the 

Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and 
documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report. 

 
3. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company 

complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY 
 
4. Our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company 

has complied with the condition of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the Listing Regulation. 
 
5. The procedures selected depend on the secretarial auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 

risks associated in compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. The 
procedures include but not limited to verification of secretarial records and financial information of the 
Company and obtained necessary representations and declarations from directors including 
independent directors of the Company. 

  
6. The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate 

Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our scope of work under this report did not involve us 
performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of 
the financial information or the financial statements of the Company taken as a whole. 

 
 
OPINION 
 
7. Based on the procedures performed by us as referred in paragraph 5 and 6 above and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with 
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the 
year ended March 31, 2021, referred to in paragraph 1 above. 

 
OTHER MATTERS AND RESTRICTION ON USE 
 
8. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
9. This Certificate is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of 

enabling it to comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any 
other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any 
duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it 
may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this Certificate for 
events and circumstances occurring after the date of this Certificate. 
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       For RD & Associates 
                                                         Company Secretaries, 

      
 
 
 

Sd/- 
                          (CS. Rahul Dhupar) 

                             Proprietor 
                           CP No.9863 

Membership No. F9446 
                                                                                 UDIN: F009446C000807991 

        
Dated: 19.08.2021 
Place:  New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

CEO/MD & CFO CERTIFICATE 
 
 
To, 
 
The Shareholders & Board of Directors 
Aashrit Capital Limited 
 
 
Sub: CEO/MD & CFO Certificate under Regulation 33(2)(a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2021 
 
We, Nimish Arora, Managing Director and Shalabh Gaur, Chief Financial Officer of Aashrit Capital Limited 
(“Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that: 
 

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statements for the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as “Year”) and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 
i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 

or contain statements that might be misleading; and 
ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

B. There is, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction(s) entered into by the Company 
during the Year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Code of Conduct of the Company. 

 
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems pertaining to 
the financial reporting and that we have disclosed to the Auditors’ and the Audit Committee of the 
Board, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee of the Board: 

 
i. that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 

Year; and 
ii. that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the Year and that the 

same have been disclosed in the notes to these statements; and 
 

E. To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no instances of significant fraud of which we 
have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having 
a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
 
 

Sd/-      Sd/- 
Nimish Arora     Shalabh Gaur  
Managing Director     Chief Financial Officer 

                                                  
        Dated: 04.09.2021 

Place:  New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE [III] TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 
I. GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

The Policy ensures that 
 The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 

Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully; 
 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks 

and 
 Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance 

between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to 
the working of the Company and its goals. 

 
II. ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE 

The role of the Committee inter alia will be the following: 
 To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

Director. 
 Formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 
 Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 
 To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance. 
 To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management. 
 To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and Senior Management. 
 Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of 

remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks. 
 To devise a policy on Board diversity. 
 

III. FREQUENCY OF THE MEETINGS 
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. 
 

IV. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
 
Appointment criteria and qualifications: 
 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 

person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board 
his / her appointment. 

 A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is 
considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise 
and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position. 

 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing 
Director/Whole-time Director/Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the 
term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the 
approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed 
to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy 
years. 

 
Term / Tenure: 
Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager (Managerial Person): 
 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Person for a term not exceeding 

five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 
 

Independent Director: 
 An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the 

Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company 
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

 No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three 
years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 
indirectly. However, if a person who has already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more 
in the Company as on 1 October, 2014 or such other date as may be determined by the Committee as 
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per regulatory requirement, he / she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 5 years 
only. 

 At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on 
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent 
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a 
Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 

 
Evaluation: 
 The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, 
 KMP and Senior Management on yearly basis or as when required. 
 
Removal: 
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or 
under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with 
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions 
and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 
 
Retirement: 
The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining 
the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 
 

V. PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSON, KMP AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT 
 

1. General: 
 The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior 

Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for 
approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post 
approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required. 

 The remuneration and commission to be paid to Managerial Person shall be as per the statutory 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. 

 Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended by the 
Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of 
Managerial Person. Increments will be effective from the date of reappointment in respect of 
Managerial Person and 1st April in respect of other employees of the Company. 

 
2. Remuneration to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management: 

 Fixed pay: 
Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may 
be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the statutory 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force and 
also depend on the financial position of Company.  
 

 Minimum Remuneration: 
If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 
pay remuneration to its Managerial Person in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the prior approval of the 
Central Government. 
 

 Provisions for excess remuneration: 
 If any Managerial Person draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such 

sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction 
of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and 
until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of 
such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government. 
 

3. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director: 
 Remuneration / Commission: 

The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. 
 

 Sitting Fees: 
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The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending 
meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the 
maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or 
such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time. 
 

 Limit of Remuneration /Commission: 
Remuneration /Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject 
to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company computed as per the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
 Stock Options: 

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 
 

VI. REVIEW AND AMENDMENT 
 The Committee or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary. 
 The Committee may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in 

supplement and better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary. 
 This Policy may be amended or substituted by the Committee or by the Board as and when required 

and also by the Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the change in 
the policy. 
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ANNEXURE [IV] TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
Your Company is a NBFC focused on providing bespoke financing solutions to its customers and has been 
in existence for more than four and half decades. At present, the Company falls within the category of 
“Non-Banking Finance Company – Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company”. Your 
Company is registered with the RBI as a NBFC without accepting public deposits under section 45 IA of 
the RBI Act, 1934. Aashrit Capital Limited is a professionally managed finance company with registered 
office at Delhi. Main objects of the Company are as under: 
 

 To lend and advance money with or without security to the customers. 
 To carry on the business as financiers and investors. 
 To acquire by purchase or otherwise, buy, underwrite, subscribe for tender, exchange, hold, 

invest, sell, transfer, hypothecate, deal in, dispose of any share, bonds, stocks, obligations, 
securities, debentures, debenture stocks, properties, unique bonds, mutual funds, unit securities, 
commercial papers, certificates issued or guaranteed by any company.  

 
The Company focuses on providing customized financial solutions to Indian Corporates and Enterprises 
for their growth and working capital requirements. Aashrit Capital has an in-house team of experts to 
evaluate values and estimate marketability of all kind of assets and consequently enabling your company 
to focus its resources on delivering quality services to the customers. 
 
THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic is a once in a lifetime occurrence that has brought with it unimaginable suffering 
to people and to almost all sections of the economy. When the pandemic struck and led to nationwide 
lockdowns to curtail the transmission of disease, it was natural to fear that the global economy would stay 
in extreme stress of the kind not seen since the Great Depression and would have a long-lasting economic 
impact. 
 
To counter the crippling impact of the lockdowns on economies, the world’s policymakers have resorted to 
fiscal and monetary measures never seen before in global economic history. It still remains to be seen if 
these relief measures sufficed, and whether actions taken by Governments across the globe adequately 
compensated for the disruptions created in the lives of people. 
 
Fortunately, science prevailed. Multiple vaccines were found with impressive efficacy levels in less than a 
year — which will probably rank as among one of the most incredible achievements in science. The 
announcement of successful development of vaccines seemed to lift spirits around the world. 
Unfortunately, the advent of winter saw several countries battle second waves of COVID-19 infections, 
including more virulent strains leading to partial lockdowns. The race between vaccines and variants is 
heating up as massive vaccination drives are underway. Much depends on blocking transmission and not 
just the disease. 
 
The only three preventives are masks, social distancing and vaccinations. However, to vaccinate even half 
of the world’s population of 7.8 billion is going to take years. The production, storage and distribution 
challenges require that Governments prioritise the vaccinations in a judicious manner so as to limit the 
human toll. 
 
Fortunately for India, which is home to some of the largest vaccine makers in the world, the supply 
constraints should be limited and temporary. Moreover, our experience in implementing large scale 
vaccination programmes should help in vaccinating our vulnerable population. Even so, with many states 
in India witnessing a seriously full-blown second surge of COVID-19, the vaccination challenge is 
enormous. 
 
After an estimated historic correction of (3.3%) in 2020, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) has 
projected the global economy to grow 6% in calendar year 2021 and 4.4% in 2022 on the back of the fiscal 
and monetary support provided by Governments of the world over coupled with widespread vaccination. 
 
We know that India can ill afford another country-wide lockdown such as was imposed from March to 
June 2020. The impact on the economy and employment was severe in the first instance; and cannot be 
repeated yet again. 
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The lockdown that continued throughout the first quarter of the FY2021 saw India’s GDP for April-June 
2020 contracting by a massive 24.4%. Even the second quarter was terrible, with GDP shrinking by 7.3% 
in July-September 2020. Thereafter, we have seen a rebound — thanks to the resilience of our citizens, our 
entrepreneurs and of our economy. 
 
The third quarter (October-December 2020) saw a small positive growth of 0.4% compared to the same 
period in the previous year. The second advance estimates of national income for FY2021 released by the 
Central Statistics Office (CSO) on 26 February 2021 anticipates the total contraction for FY2021 to be 8% 
— implying a significant ‘V’ shaped bounce-back in the second half of the year. The most recent IMF 
forecast has also raised India’s GDP growth estimate for FY2022 from 11.5% to 12.5%. If that were to 
occur, it will be the most significant growth turnaround among all the major nations of the world, 
including China. 
 
The only grey cloud at present is the huge surge in infections that started with the second wave beginning 
in early March 2021. Hopefully, a serious increase in the pace of vaccinations across the country will bring 
this surge down; and if we keep all enterprises and workers open for business, it should not affect the 
economy in any significant manner. 

MACROECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT 

Given the impact of the pandemic, FY2021 was expected to be an extremely demanding year. The 
consensus was that GDP growth in FY2021 would not only be negative but also would constitute the 
greatest fall in growth since 1979-80. 

In fact, the degrowth in GDP was much larger than expected. For April-June 2020, real GDP contracted by 
a massive 24.4%. India had never recorded a quarter of negative growth since it began issuing such data 
publicly in 1996. No other large economy shrank so much during the pandemic. In the second quarter, 
July-September 2020, GDP again contracted by 7.3%. The consensus was that growth in the second half 
of the fiscal year would be far less than what was needed to erase the effect of the deep recession in the 
first half. 

Thankfully, we began to witness early signs on resumption of economic activity in the second half of the 
year with several high frequency indicators suggesting that the economy was back on to positive growth. 
The third quarter (October-December 2020) recorded a GDP growth of 0.4%. And, as mentioned earlier, the 
second advance estimates of national income for FY2021 released by the CSO indicates a negative GDP 
growth of 8% for FY2021. Though this was bad enough, the contraction will be far less than earlier 
thought of — and we should see the fourth quarter (January-March 2021) showing relatively robust 
growth. 

Various measures taken by the RBI ensured sufficient liquidity at all times during FY2021, and thus 
calmed sentiments in bond markets which had seen volatile conditions in March and April 2020. The RBI 
reduced its policy rates only once during this fiscal on 22 May 2020 by 40 basis points (bps) to 4%. As an 
additional measure to increase credit intermediation, the RBI increased the margin between repo and 
reverse repo from 25 bps to 65 bps. The central bank’s unprecedented monetary easing and open market 
purchases kept interest rates at comfortable levels during the year despite a record growth in Government 
borrowings. It was only after the announcement of a growth-centric and expansionary Union Budget for 
2021-22 that yields in bond markets rose on expectations of the increased borrowing programme of the 
Government of India. 

We believe that the resilience shown by the Indian economy coupled with (i) a growth-centric Union Budget 
and (ii) the RBI maintaining an accommodative stance to sustain growth on a durable basis, will see the 
Indian economy grow at a faster clip than other economies. As mentioned earlier, the only cause for 
concern is the resurgence of infections and partial lockdowns in some states. 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 
 
NBFCs have become important constituents of the financial sector and have been recording higher credit 
growth than scheduled commercial banks (SCBs) over the past few years. NBFCs are continuously 
leveraging their superior understanding of regional dynamics, well-developed collection system and 
personalised services to expedite financial inclusion in India. Lower transaction costs, quick decision 
making, customer orientation and prompt provision of services have typically differentiated NBFCs from 
banks. Considering the reach and expanse of NBFCs, these are well-suited for bridging the financing gap. 
Systemically important NBFCs have demonstrated agility, innovation and frugality to provide formal 
financial services to millions of Indians. 
 
Over the last decade, NBFCs have witnessed phenomenal growth. From being around 12% of the balance 
sheet size of banks in 2010, these are now more than a quarter of the size of banks. 
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On 27 March 2020, the RBI had announced a moratorium for EMIs / payments falling due from 1 March 
2020 till 31 May 2020. This moratorium was further extended on 23 May 2020 for all EMIs / payments 
falling due up to 31 August 2020. 
 
Approximately 40.4% of total outstanding loans of financial institutions as on 31 August 2020 were under 
moratorium covering approximately 45.6% of customers (Source: RBI Report on Trend and Progress of 
Banking in India). 
 
To provide further relief to distressed customers, the RBI in its notification dated 6 August 2020, allowed 
banks, NBFCs and HFCs to undertake one-time restructuring of stressed loans on account of COVID-19 
pandemic. NBFCs and HFCs were more impacted than banks as these entities had to provide moratorium 
to their customers, without getting similar relief on their liabilities. 
 
To provide additional relief, the Government of India announced ex-gratia payment to lenders for waiving 
off compound interest for loans up to Rs. 2 crore for some category of borrowers. 
 
Thus, the business model of the NBFC sector was severely tested in FY2021. With superior capital 
adequacy, better margins, frugal cost management and lower non-performing assets (NPAs), the NBFC 
sector is well poised to seize the opportunity provided in the post-pandemic revival cycle. The revised 
regulatory framework proposed by the RBI intends to make the NBFC sector more resilient. 
 
SEGMENT – WISE OR PRODUCT – WISE PERFORMANCE 
 
The Company primarily focuses on two principal operating and reporting segments; viz. NBFC Segment 
and Real Estate Segment. NBFC Segment generated revenue of Rs. 1204.64 Lakh and there is no revenue 
from Real Estate Segment during the year. 
 
During the year under review, your Company in all segments has generated Rs. 1220.87 Lakh revenue as 
compared to Rs. 905.80 Lakh in the previous financial year.Your Directors are strongly believes that in the 
coming financial year, your Company will be able to do more profitable business and will resort for better 
financial results.  
 
POSSIBLE THREATS 
 
Phasing out of lockdown/social distancing measures at a slower pace coupled with relatively tepid policy 
response could result in deeper recession in FY21 as compared to all ‘recessions’ India has ever 
experienced. 
 
Such deep recession will increase the perception of credit risk and the consequent risk aversion could clog 
the credit channels. Rating agencies expect microfinance, unsecured loans and MSME borrowers 
(including the loans against property segment) will continue to be severely impacted for a prolonged period 
due to weak credit profile of borrowers amid a gradual economic recovery. 
 
Sharp decline in government revenue receipts due to the extended lockdown and growth slowdown coupled 
with rising need for fiscal support will throw a spanner in the works of both Union and State Government 
finances. This can raise the risks of a subsequent ratings outlook downgrade, given the mix of low growth 
and rising deficit. 
 
The high NPAs of the PSU Banks, may continue to hamper the balance sheet and that can trigger a credit 
squeeze, resulting in high interest rates and slowdown in the economy. 
 
Risk management is another aspect of NPA of the fund lend by the NBFCs mainly because of poor 
procedural aspect while selecting the borrower and their servicing of debt capabilities. The main earning of 
NBFCs are interest and appreciation in the investments. In the continued era of poor growth and 
sustainability, the NBFCs may lose sizable money due to default in interest and principle money lend. The 
value of investment also gets eroded. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES  
 
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are playing an extremely important role in sustaining 
consumption demand as well as capital formation in small and medium industrial segment. NBFCs that 
are fundamentally sound should continue to get funding from banks and mutual funds without being 
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unduly risk averse. For purchase of high-rated pooled assets of financially sound NBFCs, amounting to a 
total of Rupees one lakh crore during the current financial year. 
 
RISK AND CONCERN 
 
Being a Financial company, Company is exposed to specific risks that are particular to its business and 
the environment within which it operates. The measurement, monitoring management of risk remains key 
focus areas for the Company. Besides, in an inflationary environment, the risk of contraction in net 
interest margins can result direct impact on Company’s performance. 
 
Your Company has established a framework and process to monitor the exposures to implement 
appropriate measures in a timely and effective manner. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are 
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and to ensure that all 
transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly and adequately. The Company’s internal 
controls are supplemented by an extensive programme of internal audits, review by management and 
documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The internal control is designed to ensure that financial 
& other records are reliable for preparing financial information and for maintaining accountability of 
assets. All financial and audit control systems are also reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors of the company on periodical basis. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Your Company firmly believes that a motivated and empowered employee is the key to competitive 
advantage. At present your company has adequate human resources which is commensurate with the 
current volume of Business activity and is reviewed by the management periodically and the company 
would induct competent personnel on increase/ expansion of the Business activity. Your Company’s 
employee value proposition is based on a strong focus on employee development, an exciting work culture, 
performance and empowerment. Processes such as performance improvement, talent management and 
competency management are platforms for individual development. 
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AASHRIT CAPITAL LIMITED 
ANNEXURE [V] TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2021 
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 

Administration) Rules, 2014. 

  
  I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

1 CIN L65923DL1972PLC317436 

2 Registration Date 18/04/1972 

3 Name of the Company Aashrit Capital Limited  

4 Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited By Shares 

  Indian Non Government Company (NBFC) 

5 Address of the Registered office  & contact 
details 

Select CityWalk, 6th Floor, A-3, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-
110017 
Tel No: 011-40599999 
Email: jalan_cement@yahoo.com ; 
jalancementworklimited@gmail.com; aashritcapitallimited@gmail.com   

  

6 Whether listed company Calcutta Stock Exchange  Limited, Scrip Code  020091 
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited, Scrip Code 
AASHRIT 

7 Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 

Skyline Financial services Private Limited,                                                                            
D-153A, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi 110020,                              
Tel No. 011 26812682,83 

  

 
II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY  

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

S. 
No. 

Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the 
Product/service 

%  to total turnover of 
the company 

1 Financial Services  64990 100 
 

III.     PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

SN Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 

Associate 

% of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

1 NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE N.A. N.A. 

 
IV.    SHARE HOLDING PATTERN  
(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity) 
(i)  Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
[As on 31-March-2020] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31-March-2021] 

% 
Change 
during 

the 
year     

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 
A. Promoters                   
(1) Indian                   

a) Individual/ HUF 1672650 0 1672650 14.93 1672650 0 1672650 14.93 0.00 
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
d) Bodies Corp. 4277700 0 4277700 38.19 4277700 0 4277700 38.19 0.00 
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

f) Any other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Sub Total (A) (1) 5950350 0 5950350 53.12 5950350 0 5950350 53.12 0.00 
(2) Foreign                   

a) NRI Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) Any other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Sub Total (A) (2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
TOTAL (A) 5950350 0 5950350 53.12 5950350 0 5950350 53.12 0.00 
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B. Public 
Shareholding 

         

1. Institutions          

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
e) Venture Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

f) Insurance 
Companies 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

g) FIIs 0  0 0.00 0  0 0.00 0.00 
 h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Sub-total (B)(1):- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
           
2. Non-Institutions          

a) Bodies Corp.          
i) Indian 0 130 130 0.00 0 130 130 0.00 0.00 

ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Individuals                  
i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 1 
lakh 

0 650 650 0.01 0 650 650 0.01 0.00 

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share 
capital in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh 

5241190 
 

10220 5251410 
 

46.87 5241190 
 

10220 5251410 
 

46.87 0.00 

c) Others (specify)                  
Non Resident 
Indians 

0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 

Overseas Corporate 
Bodies 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Foreign Nationals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
Clearing Members 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Trusts 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Foreign Bodies - D R 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
HUF 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 

Sub-total (B)(2):- 5241190 
 

11000 5252190 
 

46.88 5241190 
 

11000 5252190 
 

46.88 0.00 

Total Public (B) 5241190 
 

11000 5252190 
 

46.88 5241190 
 

11000 5252190 
 

46.88 0.00 

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

11191540 11000 11202540 100.00 11191540 11000 11202540 100.00 0.00 

  
 

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter 

SN Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

% change in 
shareholding 
during the 
year No. of 

Shares 
% of 
total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

% of 
Shares 
Pledged / 
encumber
ed to 
total 
shares 

1 Nimish Arora 6,51,350 5.81 0 6,51,350 5.81 0 0 
2 Namrata Juneja 10,21,300 9.12 0 10,21,300 9.12 0 0 
3 Sindhwani Metal 

Engineering Pvt Ltd 
42,77,700 38.19 0 42,77,700 38.19 0 0 

 
 
 

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding  

SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the Cumulative 
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beginning of the year Shareholding during the 
year 

No. of shares % of total 
shares 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares 

 
- - - - - - - 

 
 

 (IV) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS 
   (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

SN For each of the Top 
10 shareholders 

Date Reason Increase/Decrease in 
Shareholding  

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares 

No. of shares % of total 
shares 

1 Satish Kumar Gupta 01.04.2020 No Change 0 0.00 1746860 15.95 
    31.03.2021 0 0.00 1746860 15.95 

          
 2 Anil Gaba 01.04.2020 No Change 

 
0 0.00 536380 4.78 

    31.03.2021 0 0.00 536380 4.78 

         
3 Mala Gupta 01.04.2020  

No Change 
0 0.00 500000 4.46 

   31.03.2021 0 0.00 500000 4.46 

         
4 Ritwick Gupta 01.04.2020  

No Change 
0 0.00 493550 4.40 

   31.03.2021 0 0.00 493550 4.40 

         
5 Bhoj Raj Dua 01.04.2020  

No Change 
0 0.00 228200 2.04 

   31.03.2021 0 0.00 228200 2.04 
    

 
    

6 Vijay Gupta 01.04.2020  
No Change 

0 0.00 166000 1.48 

 31.03.2021 0  166000 1.48 
        
7 Reena Kumari 01.04.2020  

No Change 
0 0.00 165000 1.47 

  31.03.2021 0 0.00 165000 1.47 
        
8 Jagat Singh 01.04.2020 

No Change 
0 0.00 165000 1.47 

   31.03.2021 0 0.00 165000 1.47 
        
9 Rajesh Sood 01.04.2020  

No Change 
0 0.00 360220 3.22 

   31.03.2021 0 0.00 360220 3.22 
         

10 Ajay Gupta 01.04.2020 
No Change 

0 0.00 150000 1.33 

   31.03.2021 0 0.00 150000 1.33 

 
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
S.N Shareholding of each 

Directors and each 
Key Managerial 
Personnel 

Date Reason Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of shares % of 
total 
shares 

No. of shares % of 
total 
shares 

1 Nimish Arora         

  
At the beginning of the 
year 

01.04.2020  
No Change 

6,51,350 5.81 6,51,350 5.81 

  At the end of the year 31.03.2021 6,51,350 5.81 6,51,350 5.81 

            

2 Prateek Arora         

  
At the beginning of the 
year 

01.04.2020  
No Change 

10.00 0.00 10.00 0.00 

  At the end of the year 31.03.2021 10.00 0.00 10.00 0.00 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.(As on 31st March, 
2021) 

(Amt. in Rs) 
Particulars Secured Loans 

excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 

i)   Principal Amount 14,39,582 0 0 14,39,582 

ii)  Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0 

iii)  Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0 

Total (i+ii+iii) 14,39,582 0 0 14,39,582 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

* Addition 50,00,000 0 0 50,00,000 

* Reduction 3,78,523 0 0 3,78,523 

Net Change 46,21,477 0 0 46,21,477 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount 60,61,059 0 0 60,61,059 

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0 

Total (i+ii+iii) 60,61,059 0 0 60,61,059 

 
 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:  

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 

  Name Prateek Arora (Rs/Lac) 

  Designation Managing Director   
1 Gross salary     

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961 

6.00 6.00 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax 
Act, 1961 

0.00 0.00 

2 Stock Option 0.00 0.00 

3 Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 

4 

Commission  0.00 

-  as % of profit 0.00 0.00 

-  others, specify 0.00 0.00 

5 Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 

  Total (A) 6.00 6.00 

  Ceiling as per the Act   

 
 

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
Amount 

    Heena Khurana Roli Gupta Nimish Arora  (Rs/Lac) 

1 Independent Directors      
  

Fee for attending board committee meetings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total (1) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors   0.00 0.00 

Fee for attending board committee meetings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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  Total (2) 0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00 

  Total (B)=(1+2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

  Total Managerial Remuneration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act    0.00 

 
 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total 
Amount 

  Name 
N.A. Shalabh Gaur Lalit Sethi 

 
(Rs/Lacs) 

  Designation CEO CFO CS  

1 Gross salary     

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

N.A. 11.04 7.93 18.97 

 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

N.A. 0.00 N.A. 0.00 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income- tax Act, 1961 

N.A. 0.00 N.A. 0.00 

2 Stock Option N.A. 0.00 N.A. 0.00 

3 Sweat Equity N.A. 0.00 N.A. 0.00 

4 

Commission     

-  as % of profit N.A. 0.00 N.A. 0.00 

-  others, specify N.A. 0.00 N.A. 0.00 

5 Others, please specify N.A. 0.00 N.A. 0.00 

  Total N.A. 11.04 7.93 18.97 

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of 
the 

Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority [RD / 
NCLT/ COURT] 

Appeal made, if 
any (give Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty                   

Punishment                   

Compounding                   

B. DIRECTORS                   

Penalty                   

Punishment                   

Compounding                   

          
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN 
DEFAULT                 

Penalty                   

Punishment                   

Compounding                   
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

To the Members of M/s. Aashrit Capital Limited 

(Formerly known as Jalan Cement Works Limited) 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. Aashrit Capital Limited, (Formerly 

known as Jalan Cement Works Limited) (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 

31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes 

in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us these 
financial results: 
 
a) are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations in this 
regard; and 
b) give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the 
applicable accounting standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the net 
profit and other comprehensive income and other financial information for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

 

Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial results under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the financial statements. 
 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 
 

Description of Key Audit Matter 
 
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
1. Valuation of Inventories in Un-Quoted Securities  
The company has inventories in equity shares which are 
un-quoted. These instruments are measured at fair 
value with the corresponding fair value change 
recognized in profit & loss. The valuation is performed by 
the company using a fair value hierarchy as applicable 
below:  
• Level 1: valuations based on quoted prices (unadjusted) 
in active markets.  
• Level 2: valuations based on other than quoted prices 
included within level 1 that are observable either directly 
or indirectly.  
• Level 3: valuations based on unobservable inputs for 
the asset.  
 
The valuation of inventories is inherently subjective most 
predominantly for the level 2 and level 3 instruments 
since these are valued using inputs other than quoted 
prices in an active market. Key inputs used in the 
valuation of individual level 2 investments are market 
price of quoted investments, illiquidity discount etc. In 
addition, the company determines whether objective 
evidence of impairment exists for individual investments. 
Given the inherent subjectivity in the valuation of level 3 

 
Our audit procedures included, among other 
things, an assessment of the methodology and 
the appropriateness of the valuation models 
and inputs used by management to value 
investments. Further, we assessed the 
valuation of all individual investments to 
determine whether the valuations performed by 
the company were within a predefined tolerable 
differences threshold. As part of these audit 
procedures we assessed the accuracy of key 
inputs used in the valuation including 
observable and non-observable inputs.  
 
We also evaluated the company’s assessment 
whether objective evidence of impairment 
exists for individual investments. Based on 
these procedures we have not noted any 
material differences outside the predefined 
tolerable differences threshold. 
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instruments, 
we determined this to be a significant matter for our 
audit. Disclosures on the inventories are included at 
Note 37 to the Ind AS Financial Statements. 

2. Impairment of financial assets (expected credit 
losses) 
Ind AS 109 requires the company to recognize 
impairment- allowance towards its financial assets 
(designated at amortised cost and fair value through 
other comprehensive income) using the expected credit 
loss (ECL) approach. Such ECL allowance is required to 
be measured considering the guiding principles of Ind AS 
109 including:  
unbiased, probability weighted outcome under various 
scenarios; time value of money; impact arising from 
forward looking macro-economic factors and; Availability 
of reasonable and supportable information without 
undue costs.  
Applying these principles involves significant estimation 
in various aspects, such as: grouping of borrowers on 
the basis of homogeneity by using appropriate statistical 
techniques; staging of loans and estimation of behavioral 
life; determining macro-economic factors impacting 
credit quality of receivables; Estimation of losses for loan 
products with no/minimal historical defaults. 
Considering the significance of such allowance to the 
overall financial statements and the degree of estimation 
involved in computation of expected credit losses, this 
area is considered as a key audit matter. (as described in 
note 5 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements) 

 
We read and assessed the company’s 
accounting policies for impairment of financial 
assets and also their compliance with the 
respect to Ind AS 109. We tested the criteria for 
staging of loans based on their past-due status 
is in compliance with requirement of Ind AS 
109 by testing a sample of performing (stage 1) 
loans to assess whether any loss indicators 
were present requiring them to be classified 
under stage 2 or 3 and vice versa. 
 
We evaluated the reasonableness of the 
Management estimates by understanding the 
process of ECL estimation and tested the 
controls around data extraction and validation 
Tested the ECL model, including assumptions 
and underlying computation. 
 
Assessed the floor/minimum rates of 
provisioning applied by the company for loan 
products with inadequate historical defaults. 
Audited disclosures included in the Ind AS 
financial statements in respect of expected 
credit losses 

 
Other Information 
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In 
connection with our audit of the  Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the  Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Management's Responsibilities for the Financial Results 
Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
net profit and other comprehensive income and other financial information in accordance with the 
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. 
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial results that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are 
also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Results 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial results as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these annual financial results.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial results, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion through a separate report on the complete set of 
financial statements on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures in the financial results made by the Management and Board of 
Directors. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the annual financial 
results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial results, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial results represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/financial information 
of the company to express an opinion on the financial results. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Results that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Results 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Financial Results  

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other  matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular issued by the SEBT under Regulation 33(8) 
of the Listing Regulations, as amended, to the extent applicable. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government 
in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 
(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books; 
c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account; 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 
of the Act; 
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2021 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
B”.  
 
(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 
 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its financial 
position in its Financial Statements - Refer Note 34 to the Financial Statements; 
ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts- Refer Note 40 to 
the  Financial Statements;  
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 
(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16): In our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to 
its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The 
remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to 
be commented upon by us. 
 

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 007814-N 
 
 

Sd/- 
CA Mahesh Goel 

Partner 

M. No. 088958 

                              UDIN: 21088958AAAAFY3755 

 

Place:  New Delhi 

Date:  29th June, 2021 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
The Annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements” of our report for the year ended 31st March 2021. 
 

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 
 
(b)  The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management according 
to a phased programme on a rotational basis, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the company and nature of its fixed assets. No material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. 
 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, title deed of immovable property is held in the name 
of the company. 
 

2. The Company is in the business of providing Non-Banking Finance Services and consequently, 
does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

3. The Company has granted unsecured loans to companies covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
(a) In our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prima facie 

prejudicial to the company’s interest.  
 

(b) As informed to us there are no stipulation as regards payment of interest and principal 
amount. 

 
(c) There is no amount overdue for more than ninety days. 
 

4.   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, 
investments, guarantees and security provided.  

 
5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any 

deposits from public. Accordingly, the Directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under with 
regard to the deposits accepted from public during the year.  
 

6.   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not required to maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the company. 
 

7. (a)The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, income-tax, sales –tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 
and other statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, 
the company did not have any dues on account of employees’ state insurance and duty of 
excise. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount 
payable in respect of Provident fund, income tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable. 

  
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of disputed 

taxes and duties as at March 31, 2021 which have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities, are as under:  

 
Name of the  

Statute 
Nature of 

Dues 
Amount 

(Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Period to which 
the amount 

relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

Income – Tax Act, 
1961 

Income- Tax 
demand 

26.01 A/Yr. 2017-
18 

CIT (A), Kolkata 
 

 
 

8. The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of outstanding of any loans or borrowings 
from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year.  
 

9. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not 
applicable. 
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10. According to the information and explanations given to us and based upon the audit 
procedures performed during the year, we report that no material fraud, on or by the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year.  
 

11. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, managerial 
remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act 2013. 
 

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the CARO 2016 is not 
applicable. 

 
13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 

the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

14. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 
 

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not applicable.  

 
16. The Company has obtained registration under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.  

 
 

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 007814-N 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
(CA. Mahesh Goel) 

Partner 
M. No. 088958 

                              UDIN: 21088958AAAAFY3755 
 

Place: New Delhi  
Date:  29th June, 2021 
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Aashrit Capital Limited 

(Formerly known as Jalan Cement Works Limited) (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2021 in conjunction 

with our audit of the  financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that  
1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and  

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
 
 
Opinion 
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In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2021, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 007814-N 
 
 

Sd/- 
(CA. Mahesh Goel) 

Partner 
M. No. 088958 

                              UDIN: 21088958AAAAFY3755 
 

 
Place: New Delhi  
Date:  29th June, 2021 
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AASHRIT CAPITAL LIMITED 

Regd. Office: Select CityWalk, 6th Floor, A-3, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-110017 
CIN No. L65923DL1972PLC317436 

E-Mail ID: jalancementworklimited@gmail.com, aashritcapitallimited@gmail.com, jalan_cement@yahoo.in   
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP  
(To be presented at the entrance) 

 
DP ID ______________________________ 

Folio No._____________     Client ID ____________________________ 
 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at Select 
CityWalk, 6th Floor, A-3, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017 on Thursday, 30th September, 2021 at 
02.00 p.m. 
 
PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE 
MEETING HALL. JOINT SHAREHOLDER(S) MAY OBTAIN ADDITIONAL SLIP AT THE VENUE OF THE 
MEETING. 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________________ 

Signature of the Member/ Proxy 
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AASHRIT CAPITAL LIMITED 
Regd. Office: Select CityWalk, 6th Floor, A-3, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-110017 

CIN No. L65923DL1972PLC317436 
E-Mail ID: jalancementworklimited@gmail.com, aashritcapitallimited@gmail.com, jalan_cement@yahoo.in   

 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of Member(s)  
Registered Address  
Folio No./DP ID Client Id:  
E-mail Id:  
 
I/We, being the member(s) of ........................................... shares of the above named Company, hereby 
appoint: 
 
Name  
Address  
Email Id  
Signature  

 
 
Or falling him/her 
Name  
Address  
Email Id  
Signature 
 

 
 

                    
Or falling him/her 
Name  
Address  
Email Id  
Signature 
 

 
 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 30th September, 2021 at 02:00 P.M. at Select CityWalk, 
6th Floor, A-3, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-110017 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
Resolution 
Number 

Resolution For  Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 
1.  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
on 31st March 2021, together with the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

  

2.  To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Babita Kumar 
(DIN: 09214531) who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offer herself for re-appointment. 

  

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
3.  To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
Schedule IV to the Act (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from 
time to time, and pursuant to the recommendation of 
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the 
Board of Directors, Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal (DIN: 
03147698), who holds office of Independent Director up 
to 31st March, 2021 and who has submitted a 
declaration that she meets the criteria for independence 
as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and 
Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities Exchange Board of 
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India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of 
the Act from a Member, signifying his intention to 
propose Mrs. Heena Khurana Nagpal’s candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as 
an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to 
retire by rotation, for a second term of five consecutive 
years commencing from 1st April, 2021 upto 31st 
March, 2026.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company (including its committee thereof) and/ or 
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution.” 

4.  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Babita Kumar (DIN: 09214531) 
who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 
Company w.e.f. 29th June, 2021 by the Board of 
Directors and who holds office upto the date of this 
Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) read with Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and pursuant to 
the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors, and being 
eligible, offer herself for appointment, and in respect of 
whom the Company has received a notice in writing 
under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member 
signifying his intention to propose Mrs. Babita Kumar’s 
candidature for the office of the Director, be and is 
hereby appointed as a Non-executive, Non Independent 
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company (including its committee thereof) and / or 
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution.” 

  

5.  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
Schedule IV to the Act (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from 
time to time, and pursuant to the recommendation of 
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the 
Board of Directors, Mr. Nitesh Kumar Sinha (DIN : 
02601971), who has submitted a declaration that he 
meets the criteria for independence as provided under 
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
who is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom 
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the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
Member under Section 160(1) of the Act signifying his 
intention to propose Mr. Sinha’s candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire 
by rotation, for a term of five consecutive years 
commencing from 1st February, 2021 upto 31st 
January, 2026.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company (including its Committee thereof) and / or 
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution.” 

6.  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions, 
if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (including 
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for 
the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Act 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from 
time to time, consent of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for the appointment of Mr. Nimish Arora (DIN: 
01982312) as the Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company, for a period of 5 
(five) years with effect from 29th June, 2021 upto 28th 
June, 2026 upon the terms & conditions of appointment 
including the payment of remuneration, perquisites & 
other benefits and including the remuneration to be paid 
in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any 
financial year during the tenure of his appointment, as 
set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the 
Notice convening this Meeting, with liberty to the Board 
of Directors (including its Committee thereof) to alter 
and vary the terms & conditions of the said Appointment 
in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board 
of Directors and Mr. Nimish Arora.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
(including its Committee thereof) be and is hereby 
authorised to revise the remuneration of Mr. Nimish 
Arora from time to time to the extent the Board of 
Directors may deem appropriate, provided that such 
revision is within the overall limits of the managerial 
remuneration as prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Schedule V thereto, and/or any 
guidelines prescribed by the Government from time to 
time.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company (including its Committee thereof) and / or 
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution.” 

  

 
Signed this ________ day of ___________________ 2021 
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Signature of Shareholder      Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
Notes: 
 This Form, in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the meeting. 
 A Proxy need not be member of the Company. 
 A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate 

not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company. A member holding more 
than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as proxy, however, such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or 
Shareholder. 
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AASHRIT CAPITAL LIMITED 

Regd. Office: Select CityWalk, 6th Floor, A-3, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-110017 
CIN No. L65923DL1972PLC317436 

E-Mail ID: jalancementworklimited@gmail.com, aashritcapitallimited@gmail.com, jalan_cement@yahoo.in  
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